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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying linancial statements of Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly
known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at
March 31. 2023, the Statemeni of Profit and Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013. as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al March 31, 2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements® section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants ol India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to repart that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board ol Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
oladequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of'the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair preseniation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l.

2

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that;

(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and befief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(F) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;
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(2) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2023;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
I'l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinian and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer note 33 to the financial statements:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. . no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™). with the understanding. whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person or entity. including foreign entity
("Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date
of this report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAl Firin

Membership Number: 504649

(N

l}e%zisuin ion Number: 101049W/E300004

irmani

UDIN: 23504649BGZLDY4677
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 24, 2023
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.) (“the
Company™)

(i

(ii)

(1ii)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars ol intangibles assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property. Plant and Equipment so as
to cover all the assels once every two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property,
Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by
the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31,2023,

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and. accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans. stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees. provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, [Trms.
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, [irms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Com pany.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Com panies Act and the
tules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b)The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund. employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of theNature of thelAmount (Rs.) [Period to which theForum where  the
statute dues amount relates dispute is pending
Income Taxlincome tax 96,271,240 Assessment  YearCIT(A)

\ct, 1961 2020-21

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books ol account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

() The Company did not have any term loans outstand ing during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence. the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(N) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/ further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence. the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

(a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year. no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Com panies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as preseribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented (o us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therelore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable 1o the
Company.

(b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Com panies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable
to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order
insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore. the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required (o have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore. the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(h) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year.,

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

(xix)

(xx)

requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note no. 34 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities. other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they Ffall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit re port
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act). in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in
note no. 19(b) to the financial statements,
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(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note no. 19(b) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Re@!rz;l ion Number: 101049W/E300004

/
\T’\W |
pdr Amit Virmani

Partner

Membership Number: 504649
UDIN: 23504649BGZLDY4677
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE- 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF COFORGE SF PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN
AS WHISHWORKS IT CONSULTING PVT. LTD.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Coforge SF
Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.) (“the Company™) as of March
31,2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business.
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing. as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit
ol internal financial controls. both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference 10 financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
linancial stalements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the com pany; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial stalements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. materfal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference (o financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

IFor 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm P,f:g'is!rajinn Number: 101049W/E300004

N vt

per Amit VitTmani

Pantner

Membership Number: 504649
UDIN: 23504649BGZLDY4677
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 24, 2023




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishiworks 17 Consalting Pyt Lul,)

CIN: UT2200TG2010PTCORT28T
Balanee Sheot as at 31 March 2023

(Al amonms i Indiun Rupees Lakhs, except for shure datn or i otherwise stated)

Notes As il As al
3| March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 660 216
Right-of-use assets 32 1,398 1,498
Intengibile assets 4 - 2
Finanginl assets
Investmenis Sii) 121 12)
Trude receivalyes S(1it) S04 =
Other Nmancial ussets Al 26 31
Delierred 1nx assets (net) 6 191 169
Ohher non currenl assels 7 38 33
Non gurment tax asset (net) 8 - 43
Total non-gurrent pssets 2938 2,113
Current nssels
Financinl assels
Trisde receivables S(iiy 3,004 4,499
Cosh and cash egquivalents S(iv) 1,693 1,818
Banlk balances other than cush and cash equivalents Sivi 19 18
Other finaneinl assats 5(in a7 12
Other cirrent assets 7 307 445
Total current issets 5.260 0992
Total asscls 8,198 9,105
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shans capital (i) 26 26
Other equiny (i) 4,091 6,337
Totul equity 4,117 6,303
Non-curvent linbilities
Financial limbilities
Trude Pavable 1
Total oustanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total oustanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and smill émterprises 418 -
Lense Hability 332 1484 1462
Provisions I 304 196
Total non-currvent labilities 2,206 1,858
Current liubilities
Fimancial linbilities
Trade pavables I
Total oustanding dues of micro enierprises ind small enterprises 2 13
Totdl oustanding dues of creditors olhur flian micro enterprises
and small enterprises 559 386
Lense lubility a2 13 A6
Provisions 10 i 30
Liabilities for current tax (net) 13 273 46
Other current labilities 13 a79 343
Totnl curvent linbilities 1,875 H84
Tutal liabilities 4,081 2,742
Total equity and linbilities 8,198 2,105
2

Summary of significant accounting palicies

The accompanying noles are an imegml part of the [innneial statements
A% per our report ol even date

For 5.R Batlibei & Associntes LLP
Firm Registeation No 10 1049W/E300004
Chaglered Accountan

7

pey Amit Virman)
nberstnp Noo 504649

Place * Gurugram
Date 2 24 April 2023

Forand on behull’ o Bourd of Directors of

Caolorge SF Private Limited (form
Whishworks I'T Consulting Py, Lt

AjaTiRa
IDrector
DIN: DX3157214

Mace : Gremer Noidu
Date - 24 April 2023
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)
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Diteetor
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Ploce . Singapore
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Coforge SI¥ Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks I'T Consulting Pve. Lud,)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Year ended March  Year ended March

Particulars Notes 2023 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers 14 15,135 8.746
Other income 15 1.740 2015
Total income 16,875 10,761
Expenses
Cost of services - 3
Employee benefils expense 16 8.311 5406
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 3i6 217
Finanee costs 18 135 90
Other expenses 19 2,745 1.066
Total expenses 1507 6,782
Profit before tax 5368 3.979
Income tax expense: 20
= Current tax 1,100 322
- Adjustment ol tax relating to earlier periods (48)
- Delerred tax (78) {32)
Total tax expense 1,022 443
Profit for the year 4,346 3,536
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
ftems that will not be reclassified 1o
profit or loss
Remeasurement ol post - employment 124 39
benefit abligations (expenses) / income - 7
Income tax effcel 20 (56) (10}
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tix 168 29
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,514 3,565
Earnings per share (EPS) 2]
Busic eamings per share (Rs.) 1.691 1.382
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 1,691 1.382
Summary ol significant accounting policies 2
The necompanying notes are an integral part of the lnancial statements
As per our report of even date
For S,R Batliboi & Associntes LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Firm Registratipn No. 101049W/LE300004 Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly knosin as Whishwaorks
haptered .-\rtﬁhﬂauu-\) I'T Consuolting Pvt. Lid.) !

/\IW \uv

per Amit Virmani Aot i v Prasad
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 504649 DIN: 03157214 DIN: 07490849
Place : Gurugram Place : Greater Noidny Place : Singapore

Date : 24 April 2023 Date : 24 April 2023 Dute : 24 April 2023




Caforge SF Private Limited (Tormerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pyvi, Lul,)
CEN: U72200TG200 01 TC067287

Cash Mow statement for the year ended 31 Mureh 2023

(Al nmounts m Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share dati or us otherwise stated)

Purticolirs

Year ended Mareh 2023

Yeor ended Mareh 2022

Cash Now Trom operating activities

Profit before meome nx 5,368 3.979
Adjusiments fur:
Depreciation and pmrtisation expense. including right-oftuse usiels a6 217
[nterest - others 4 9
Interest on |ease labilitics 128 7
Dividend imeome (1,433) 11,585)
Allowance for doubtful debis ) 10
Adjustment on aceount of re-nssessment of RO asser - (16)
Linrealised foreign exchange (gain)losy 24 {209
Interest incame on unwinding of deposits {7 (3)
Interest income un deposils o (h
Working capitul wiljustmenis:
(Inerease ) Decrensed in trade receiviables 811 11,746)
(InerenselDecrease in other current finaneml asscts 187 (49)
Inerense in other nssers 134 (97)
Incrense/{ Decrease) in pravisions 131 o8
Inerensed Deerease) in trade poyahles 580 1
Inctease/| Deerease ) in olher current liabilitics (38 78
Casl generated Trom aperations 6,826 957
Income taxes paid (833) {694
Net eash Nows from aperating activitios 5,991 259
Cush Mow From investing netivities
Purchase of propeny. plant snd equipment (660) (248}
Investment in bank deposits (1) -
Dividend reeeived from current invesiments 1433 1,585
Interest received on deposits 11 |
Net cash Tows from/ (used in) Investing activities 783 1,338
Cush flow from financing netivities
Repayment of lease liabilities (139) (138)
Dividend payment 1o shureholders {6.760) {2,098)
Net cash Tlows used in financing activities (6,899 (2,236)
Nel increase in cash and cash equivalents {125) (639)
Cush und eash equivalents ot the heginning of the vear 1818 2457
Cashand eash equivalenms ot yenr end 1.693 1,518
Components of cush and cash equivalents
Cashoon handi B
Balances with banls
- in currenl accolnts 1,693 1,818
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,693 1.818

Simmary of significant accounting policigs

[}

#Mil due 1o rounding ofl 10 nearest [ukhs

The accampanying notes are an integral part of the hancial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S, Batlihoi & Associntes LLP
Firm Registmtion l‘}d-l? 109 W/EIN000Y
pUnLints /

wnrds

Menibership Mo 504649

Pluee : Gurngram
Date - 24 April 2023

I'or and on behal lof Board of Directors of
Coforge SF Private Limited (formdrly known as

DIN: 03157214

Place | Greater Noida
Date: 24 April 2023

" DIN: 07490840

Place : Singapore
Dute: 24 April 2023



Cofore SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks 1T Consulting Pyi. Lid.)

CIN: UT2200TG2010PTCU6T287
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(ANl imounts in Indian Rupees Lokhs, except for shure datn or s olherwise stated)

. Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid
As at 31 March 2021
Lepuiity shares issued during the year
Asat 31 Mureh 2022
Ecpuity shares issued during the year
Asiat 31 March 2023

. Other equity

Balance as at 01 April 2021

P'rofit for the vear

Other camprehensive income, net of tax

Shares issued on exercise of employee of stock options trefer note 947}
Trandfer on necount of exercise of stock options (refer note 9(ii))
Drividend paid (refer nite 9(i

Balunce as a1 31 Moreh 2022

Prafit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the vear, net of lx

Shures issued on exereise of cmpluyee of stock options {refor note 9(ii))
Transfer on account ol exercise of stock aptions (refer note 9(ii))
Dividend pad {refer note 90i1))

Dalunee as ot 31 Mareh 2023

Number Amount
250,474 15
6,485 I
256,959 26
256,959 26
Securities Employee Retained Cupital Total
premim stock option eirnings Teserve
737 [ 4,155 9 4,868
- - 35306 - 3,536
- - 29 29
| | . 2
68 -68 - -
- = (2.098) . (2.09%)
807 - 21 4 0,337
43440 4,346
168 168
(6,760) (6,768
807 - 3270 9 4,001

Summary af significant accounting policies

()

‘Theaccampanying nofes are an iniegeal part of the fMnancial sistements
As per our report of even date

For S.R Batliboi & Associntes LLP
Firm Registration hlg, 101049 A500004

CRnrtdred Acgountants
‘JJW

Amit Vir
mer
Mamberslnp No.: 504649

Muoce - Gurugram
Date - 24 April 2023

Forand on behalf of Board of Dircetors of
Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly knowsf us
Whishworks I'T Cansulting Pvt, Lid.)

DI 03157214

Place © Greater Noida
e = 24 Apnil 2023

diifjeey Prasal
[Yreciar
OIN. 07490849

Place : Singapare
Date : 24 April 2023



Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

I.

2

2.1

(b)

(a)

Corporate information

Coforge SF Private Limited ("the Company”) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated uncer
the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India registered office at 7" Floors of AU Infinium at D.No.
2-9/90/1/AUC/TF, Gachibowli, Serlingampally, Rangareddy District, Hyderabad, Telangana — 500032.
Company name has been changed from Wishworks IT Consulting Private Limited to Coforge SF Private
Limited w.e.f. January 02, 2022. In June 2019, the Company became a subsidiary of Coforge Limited by virtue
of a shareholder’s agreement entered between the Company, its promoters and Coforge Limited. The Company
renders business IT solutions including consulting and system integration services (comprising of enterprise
solutions, system integration and advance technologies) and also renders Big Data analytics services. The
Company is engaged in rendering sofiware development and related services to Coforge SF Limited (formerly
known as Whishworks Limited UK), its subsidiary, and also to its external customers. It is also engaged in
reselling of the subscription licenses to external customers.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 April
2023.

Significant necounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The Standalone financial statements ofthe Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time).

Coforge Limited (formerly known as *NIIT Technologies Limited’), the holding company prepares its
consolidated financial statements including the Company in accordance with Ind AS and files the same with the
Registrar. The Company has therefore availed the exemption provided under Companies (Accounts) Amendment
Rules, 2016 and has not prepared consolidated financial statements.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and

liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

» certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments); and

» defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at Fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.} and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (Rs,
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is {reated as current when it is:

i.  Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

ii.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii.  Expected 1o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(b)

(c)

A liability is current when:

i Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

i, Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii.  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The company has identificd twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company is measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the "functional currency'). Financial statements of the
Company are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

All foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the monthly rate. FForeign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of the accounting period. Exchange difference on restatement
of all other monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investment in mutual funds, at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset o paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumplion that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either —

# in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

i

# in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or linbility

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured ar disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

> Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

»  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¥ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required 1o be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis,
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inpuis applied in the valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.




Coforge SF Private Limited (Tformerly known as Whishworks I'T Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(d) Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of discounts and taxes. The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have heen
met for each of the Company's activities as deseribed below. The Company bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

As per IndAS 1135, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™, revenug is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to recejve in
exchange for those products or services. The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of
Profit and loss.

Rendering of services

The Company provides services to its subsidiary as well as outside customers. Revenue is recognized when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. services have been rendered, the fee is determinable and
collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from rendering of services to subsidiary is recognized on accrual basis for services rendered and billed
as per terms of specific coniracts.

Revenue from provision of trained resources to subsidiary are recognised as resources are utilised by (or) services
are provided to the customer in accordance with the contract terms.

Time and material contracts
Revenue with respect to time-and-material contracts is recognized as the related services are performed.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are treated as contract assets (which is referred as unbilled revenue) while
invoicing in excess ol revenues are treated as contract liabilities (which is referred as deferred revenues). The
Company classifies amounts due from customer as receivable or unbilled revenue depending on whether the
right to consideration is unconditional. Ifonly the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due, the amount is classified as receivable. Otherwise, such amounts are classified as unbilled revenue.

Fixed Price Contract

Revenue from fixed-price, fixed-capacity/ fixed monthly contracts, where the performance obligations are
satisfied over time and where there is no uncertninty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is
recognized as per the percentage-of completion method. When there is uncertainty as 1o measurement or ultimate
collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expended have
been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and
productivity.

Licenses and Annual Maintenance Services

Revenue from reselling of licenses (these licenses are on-premises software which provide the customer with a
right to use the software as it exists when made available) is recognised on delivery i.e.. when the software is
made available to the customer by the principal seller/service provider, at net basis.

Revenue from annual maintenance services are recognised proportionately over the life of the contract.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into amount outstanding and applicable interest
rate.




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share daia or as olherwise stated)

(e)

()

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interes! income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,

Income tax

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 10 the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that ate enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its overseas branches operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax basis ol assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss),
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporury ditferences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current lax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforeeable right to offset and intends either to seitle on a
net basis, or 1o realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates
1o items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(8)

Company as a lessee

In accordance with Ind AS 116, the Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. The Company recognises the cumulative effect
of initially applying this Standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.¢., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabililies recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

I ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (g) Impairment
of non-financial assets,

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease labilitics is remeasured if there is a
madification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Financial liabilities in the financial statements of the Company.

Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term lease of premises (i.c., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term lease is recognised as expense as and when in incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company ussesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
assel, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assels or
Company's of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvi. Ltd.)
CIN: UT2200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(I)

(i)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fMlows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied (o project future cash flows after the fifth year, To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Investments and other financial assets
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
#  Debt instruments at amortised cost; and

¥ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and

¥ Debt instruments and derivatives at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Amortized cost:

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

» The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

> Contractual terms of the asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables,

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
Profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from the equity to Profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument is reparted as interest
income using the EIR method.

Fuir value through profit or loss:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost oras FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL, In addition, the Company may elect
to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC] criteria. as at FVTPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)

is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

»  the rights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

*  the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’®
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transfarred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights (o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and 1o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards ol ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

tecognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

# Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade
receivables, contract asset and bank balance; and

» Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade reccivables
or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, Company is required 1o consider all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the financial instrument.
However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

Investment in subsidinries
[nvestment in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
or as payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
payables, net ol directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and liabilities recognised for put option.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in awn credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing lnancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(k)

O]

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or
realize the assct and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation less
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asgset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
assel is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The estimates of useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computers 3-6 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Vehicles 8 years

The asset's useful life is reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The Assets carrying amount is written down immediately to it's recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than it’s estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income/expenses

as applicable.

{m) Intangible assets

(n)

Intangible assets represent computer software

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives determined based on an
internal technical valuation and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company amortizes intangible
assets with a finite useful life (3 years for computer software) using the straight-line method.

The asset's useful life is reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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(0)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimates of the expenditure incurred to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company
has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does
not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis, The Company’s
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the
services are received rom the employees.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan") in accordance with the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment.

The liability recognized in the balance sheetin respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined
benefit abligation at the end of the reporting period less fair value of the assets. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations denominated in Indian Rupees is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of related obligation. The contributions in respect of defined benefit gratuity fund are
made to Life Insurance Corporation based on its advice. The accounting charge for benefits under the defined
benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Service costs and
net interest expense or income is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss on account of re-
measurements are recognized through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they oceur.

Other Benefit Plans

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated leave for which the Company records the liability
based on actuarial valuation computed under projected unit credit method. This benefit is unfunded.

Compensated absences, which are expected to be availed orencashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year
are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each vear. Service costs and net interest expense or income is
reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Compensated absences that are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year
are treated as short term employee benefits and the obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost
of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Service Award Loyalty

Dependent on completion of service, the Company provides certain monetary benefits to its employees at defined
milestones alongwith providing non-encashable leaves at each respective milestone. The Company aceounts for
such monetary benefils basis actuarial liability ascertained at the end of every reporting period.

Service Award Loyalty is a defined benefit obligation and the liability recognized in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date, together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. An independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method calculates the defined benefit obligations annually.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they oceur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. Any asset resulting
from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the schemes.

This scheme has been scrapped by the Company with effect from 01 April 2020.

Share-based payments
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whercby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vest ing date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of'an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been mel. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

In situations where the Company issues share-based payments to employees of the subsidiary and does not cross
charge the cost to such subsidiary. the cost pertaining to the vesting period is recorded as investment made in the

subsidiary with a corresponding credit to equity.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(p) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by weighted
average number of equity shares (including compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares) outstanding
during the financial year.

Diluted enrnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares
and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(q) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule [11, unless otherwise stated.

(r) Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and were
effective | April 2022. These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New amendments issued but not effective

Ministty of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”)notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31,
2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1. 2023. The Company has
evaluated the accounting policy information disclosures 1o ensure consistency with the amended
requirements and concluded that no change is required.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has
introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has
cvaluated the accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended
requirements and concluded that no change is required.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exem ption
so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The
Company has evaluated the accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amended requirements and cancluded that no change is required.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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3 Property, plant and equipment

I'l" equipment O,m“ Furniterc and Vehicle Total
equipment lixtures
Cost
As at 31 Mareh 2021 288 46 3 - 337
Additions 248 - - - 248
Transfers/ adjustments = - -
Asat 31 March 2022 536 46 3 - 585
Additiony 177 - 462 21 660
Disposals - - - - -
Asat 3l March 2023 713 46 465 21 1,245
Peprecintion and impairment
Asat 3l March 2021 225 39 3 - 266
Depreciation # 101 | 0 - 103
Disposal - - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 326 40 3 - oY
Depreciation 138 - 76 2 216
Disposal - - = =
As nt 31 March 2023 464 40 79 2 585
Net book value
As at 31 March 2023 249 6 386 19 (64
Asat 3l March 2022 210 [ - - 216
#Nil dueto rounding ofT 1o nearest lakhs
4 Intangible assets
Computer Total
__ software
Cost
As at 31 March 2021 (i 68
Additions - -
Asat 31 March 2022 68 68
Additions - -
As at 31 March 2023 1] i1
Amorfisation and impairment
As at 31 March 2021 (ix} 63
Depreciation 3 3
Balance as at 31 March 2022 G 66
Depreciation 2 2
Asat 31 March 2023 68 6f
Net book value
As at 31 March 2023 - -
As nt 31 March 2022 2 2

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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LA comesumes i Invlinn Bupees Lakhs, except for share data or 2 otberwise sated)

5 Finnneiol nssets

Si) Noo-curreni investments 31 Murch 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Investment in equity imsteuments (Gully poid)
Ivventment in subsichary comprmies (Enguoted)
100 (31 Mareli 2022 100) Equity shares of GBP | esch i Calorge SF Linited {Toruily Known os Whishworks Limited UR)* 124 121
Towl equity insteomenty 121 121
Aggregine value of udquoted 1nvestmentn 121 i21
T Rt 76 Lakho (3] March 2037 | B 70 Lakhs) en account of ESOP expenditine fop ESOMs ssied (o employees of subsidianes withont any
chnte
S(ii)  Other fmancinl assels 31 Alareh 2023 31 Murch 2022
Finsmeinl Insteuments sr omortised cost Curvenl  Noo- current Currenl Nt eurrent
Security depons 37 6 65 M
Orherreseivables* - - 147 -
3 256 212 Ell
Uinsecured Considered dosbiinl
Ulnliilled reecivibile I - 10 -
Lisss - Allowance lor dodliful delsis (10} ~ [LE]
Tl 37 26 212 31
Hneluibes receivables from related panies imounting 1o ks NIL{3| March 2022 147 Lakhs) (refer note 29)
NMuveniestt in expectel eredit loss during the year ended nre m fllows
31 Morel 2023 31 Mypeh 2022
Halange ot the beginmng of the period year 1o 1]
Provision made during the year = -
1o 1
Sfiii) Trade receivables 31 Mareh 2023 31 Mareh 2012
Cirrent Nowe current Curreat Mun- curvent
Trnde recervables® 1,972 - 4413
Untulled recervable** 1357 04 107 0
3.129 S04 4520 -
Iinpadrent alluwance (allovwinee o nd snd doubieful delbis)
Tride Recenvables - eredit npiired [25} (21
Total Tende receivitliles 3204 S04 4,450 -
* Ineludes revebvable from felated parties amounting 1o Bs 705 Likhs ( 31 Mach 2022 3,627 Lnkhs) (refer note 29)
**lrade receivables meludes amouns ver 1o be billed to and deprenilent only on pasaage of trme (unlnlled
Mo traele or other recewable dre due from directors or other officers of the Campany enther severally ar jointly with any ofher petson: Noeany ieade or other receivable are due
from firms ar prvite compames respectively in which any dicector s n parmer, g director ora member Trade recervaliles sre non-nerest bearing und are wenerally an teting of
3o 60 diys
Ouistanding for following perimds from dise date of paymeni
Partienlars Less than 6 6 monthn - 12 3 Muore than Totnl [nsm
Pt faue I I yeur yenrs yenrs 3 yeirs Mlireh 31, 2023)
() Uicisy | Trade rec I1es — o fered gmod 953 Iz - - - 1,947
() Dhspuited Trade Recenables — credit impired - - 10 - 15 - 25
sl fing Fur following periods from due date of pryment
Particulirs Niit Die Less than & 6 months - 12 23 Maore than Tatal (s
et lis L venr YElrs years 3 yenrs March 31, 2022)
{1 Undispured Trade recervalies - considered good 1,531 21513 4h - - - 4392
(411 Drigputed Trade Recgivables - credit i . - o - |1 - 2
Breahup fur seeurity details 31 Murch 2023 31 Murch 3022
Cuansidered sood, dnsecured 3304 4,499
Credit impaired 15 21
Less Allowaee S donbiful debis {25) 1)
3.2 4490
Muwement i espected coedii loss diring \he yonr ended are ns fillows
31 March 2023 31 Marel 2022
Bidaree a1 the bewinning ol the perod yeqr 21 I
Prosiston mace dutimg the year il 10
B debts wrinen of T agannst opening provagion during the . -
year
25 21
S(ivy Cashoand cash vanivalents 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

Baloneces with banks
= Ol enrrent peconnis
Cash on handh

AN due (o routding o0 to nerest kLS

1o L8
N 0
1,693 L4148
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Naotes to financkil stntements For the yenr eoiled 31 March 2023

(AL amounts m Indinn Rupess Lakba. except for shire dag oras oienwise stied)

Siv) Boamb balinces other thin cash nmd casb couivalenta

Deposis with argmal matunty for more thin iree months but semaininie niaturity of less o twelve monts*

*Inotuden fised deposst of Ra 19 Lukhs (31 March 2022 Ra. 18 Laklha) held as It ey

Bredl wp of Runncial sssols enrried at amorised cost
Othver Nndticidl fasets (refier nole' S (1))

Tradié receivabligs (refler note S (il))

Cush tind aosly eiuivalens (feler note 5 (jv))

Dunli bulanees otlier thay cish ind wuh equivalents (refer noge 5 (v))

Totul Anpnelal nasets carried al mmortised cost

Rezoucilintion of Tabilitles whise cash fow movements are diselased as part of financing sctivities in the statemon of euh Mows

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

19

31 Mureh 2023

31 Murch 2022

(%] 350
3,204 4,499
103 I.BIR

19 I8
4979 6,685

Particnlirs Asadidndb Cash flon furles e }I:“'l.'.l‘ enale ::::::: Others A5l XL Marel)
1022 Proceeds Payinent 2023
Mo neceied
Dividend Payalie tineluding Corporte (ividemd Tux ) (Refer - - 10.760) {6,760) - 6.0 -
Mote | belfow) !
Lease luibility {Refer Note 32 for othera) 1.509 - L139) 1134y 128 - 1,497
1.50% - (6.M99) (6,800} 124 6,760 1497
W 1 ¥ 1l
Particulars hsar ) M"“] i e ;:.I- ensh z:::;:: Olhers A8 31 Mngs
w21 Proceeds Payment - 2022
Nows seerued
avidend Fayable (meluding Corporite Tividend Tax ) (Reler - B (2.098) (1098 - 2,098 -
[Mote | bitow)
Lense hnbility 15| - {138) L138)] RE] [F=] 1.5
78] - (2.236) 12.236) 73 2910 1,500
Note 1 Ohens ihefude interim dividend pecrued diring the year
Notes 0 ropresents amoun s befow the rounding ol norm adopted by the Company
6 Deforved tnx nasels (net) J1 Marelh 2023 31 March 2022
Dreferred tnn nssets relates (o (he following:
Tasc npaet of r=messurement of eost o met defied benefit linb ity and bopss provisan D] 140
Fmprat af difference betwern tax depreciation and depreci famorzahon chirged for | reparting 8 4
Oihers a4 25
191 169
Movement in deferred tas assels
Praperty, .
plant & Empluyee Others Totnl
Licniehity
—equipment
AL April 2021 2 121 14 147
tehargedVorodited
= b prodit or bess - defierred s (%) 29 1 n
« o olher comprehensive incoime - 1) = (1
AL31 March 2022 4 140 5 169
Teharged)ieredited
- 10 profit or oo - delerred tax 4 5 0] 78
=10 ather compreliennive nworie - {30} - 156)
= moverient in relnimed ennings . »
AL30 Mureh 2023 § &9 94 191
7 Other assets Curvenl  Noii- current Curront Nug- current
Prepray mens 168 - R -
Balonee with statutary/sovermment aqihoriies 77 208 -
Other ndvanices 41 - |5 -
Exf¥ered onntrast copt 21 ay aa 33
M7 am 45 3
& Toax paxet (net) Current

Advance income 1 (et al provision ol income tax)

Current  Now- ¢nirrenl

Nan- cnrvent
43

(Thin space lvas been tnteptionally [elt blank)
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(Al amaunts i Indian Rupees Lakhs. exeept for share data or as ofherwise stated)

9 Equity share eapitad sined other equity

() Equity share capital

31 Mureh 2023 31 March 2022

Authorized equity share capital

300,000 (31 March 2022: 300,000} equity shares of Rs, 10 each 30 30

150,000 (31 Mareh 2022: 150,000) compulsorily convertiuble preference shares of Rs 10 ¢ach (CCCPS) 15 15
45 45

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up shaves

256,959 (31 March 2022 256 959) equity shares of Rs: 10 each 16 26
26 26

alteeoneilintion of number of equity shires outstanding, amount at the beginning amb at the eml of the year

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
MNa. Amount No. Amounl
Al the beginning of the year 256,959 26 256,959 26
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 256,959 26 156,159 26

b Terms aodl vights atiached 1o equity shares

The Compuny has one cliss of equity shares having o par value of 210 per equity share. Each holder of equity shure 15 entitled 10 one vote per share, The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the sharchiolders in the ensuing wenersl mecting. The Company declares and
pays dividends in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining asseis of the
Compuny in proportion of their sharcholding

e.Shares held by holiding company

Out of equity shares issued by the company. shares held by its holding company are as below 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Caforge Limited
213,779 (31 March 2027 213.779) equily shares 21 21

11 21
(L Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Name of Sharcholiler No. of Sharves % of Halding  No, of Shores % of Holding
held Teld

Equity Shares
Cotorge limited 213,779 B3 20%; 213,779 83.20%
Colorpe SmbrtServe Limited 43,180 16 804y 43,180 | 68040
{ii) Other equity
Sevurities premivm 31 Mureh 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balunce 06 737
Add: Transferred from employee stock oplion - 68
Add: Premivm on shares issued for exercised options |
Closing balunce #06 806
Employee stocl optinns 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Options granted (ll dite - 67
Add: Shares issued for exercised aptions - -
Less: Exercise of stoek options - (67)

Closing balance - -

For details of shares reserved for issue under the Shire hased payment plan of the company, please refer note 32

Retnined earnings 31 Mureh 2023 31 March 2022
Opening bulance 5522 4,053
Met profit for the year 4346 3.536
ltems of other comprehensive income recopnized direelly in retained eamings

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation. net of fax 168 29
Dividend paid (6,760) {2.098)
Closing halance 3,276 5522
Cupitnl reserve 31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balonce G 9
Chiviges during the year - -
Closing balance 9 2

Total 4,001 6,337




Coforge ST Private Limited (formerly Known as Whishworks [T Consulting Pyt. L)
CIN: U72200TG201 0P TCORT287

Notes 1o linancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakls, except for share dator ns othenvise stated )

Nature nnd purpose of other reserves
Securitics preminm reserves
Securltics premitun 1s used 1o record (he prenium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordunce with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013,

Employec stock aption reserve
Share options outstanding account is used 10 recognise the grant dote fir vilue of options issued 1o employees under Whishworks Employee Stock Option Mlan
2016,

Capital reserve
Capital reserve 15 used 1o fecognise profil ar loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the equity imstruments

Distribution made 31 Murch 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Interim dividend for the year ended an 31 Mareh 2023: INR 2650.58 per share (31 Mareh 2022 INR 816 67 fer share) 6,760 2,098
0,760 2,008

(s space his been intentionally lefl blank)
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Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishwaorks 1T Consulting Pvi. Lid.)
CIN: HT2200TG2010F T CO67287

Motes 1o financial statements for the yeur ended 31 Mareh 2023

CAIL amoipes i Indian Rupees Laklis, except for share dita or as otherwise stited)

10 Provisions

31 Mareh 2023

31 Mareh 2022

Current MNon Current Current Non Current
Leave encashment 2 3 I3 RO
Gratiity 35 21 3 e
49 34 S0 396
I Financial liabilities 31 Mareh 2023 31 Murch 2022
thy  Trade payahles Current Nan Current  Current Nan Corrent
Tatal ongtanding ducs of iicro enterprises nnd small enterprises (refor note 27) 2 - 13 -
Total oustanding dues of ceeditors other than micro enterprises and small enterrises * 559 18 386 -
61 AIB A9 =
* Inehudes payable to related parties amonnimg to Rs 9% Lakls ( 31 March 2022 219 14khs) (refer note 29)
Break up of financial Babillties enrried at amortised cost
31-Mar-23  31-03-2022
Non current lense Lmbility (refer note 32) 1,484 1462
Trade payables (refer note 11) 979 399
Curtent muturities of lease lability (refer note 32) 13 da
2476 1,907
Trade Payable ngeing as nt 315t March, 2023
Outstunding for fallowing perinds from due date of puyment
st Totul (a8 at
PaTHERINY Unbilled l‘“’::::“ b v 23years VTR ren 3,
Y ki 2023)
() Untispeed diees - omiero and sinall - 2 - - - 2
(i) Undisputed dues - Ciliers 819 158 - - - a77
Trade Payuble ngeing as nt 315t Mureh, 2022
Outstunding for following periods from due daie of payment
Tutal (a8 at
PAeulavs Unbilled Liesy/llar) I -1 yeurs 23 yers M th?u 3 March 31,
year years 2022)
() Undisputed dies - micro s small - 13 - - - 13
(100 Lindisputed dies - Others 100 180 - - - 386
12 Linbilitics for current tas (uer)
Current Na Current
Provision for iaves 2752 A
Less: Advance thx 2479 -
Provision for taxes (ned of advance i) 273 46
I3 Other curvent linbilities Current Non Current
Stututory diey iz 125
Comtrael Linhilities 25 58
Employes henefils payable 412 160
979 343

(This spiee hns been tnrentiomily Ten k)




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known ss Whishworks T Consuliing Py L)
CIN: UT2200T G2MOPTCO6T287

Notes to finnneiul statemients for the year ended 31 Maurch 2023

(AN tmoupts in Indinn Rupees Lakbis, except for shire dar or as otheswise stined)

Yeur ended March

Yeur ended March

2023 2022
14 Revenue from confracts with customers
Snle of services {refernote 31) 15,135 8,746
15,135 8,740
15 Ciher income
Dividend toecome from subsidingy 433 1,385
Interest an fived deposit I |
Unwindinge of discount on seeurity deposits 7 3
Gy o exdbonge fludtuations (pet) el | 0
I y from subsitliaries for suppont services 265 ann
1,740 2,015
16 Employee benefits expense
Soluries, bouus and nllowmnees T.H03 5.181
Contribution to provident and other funds 133 |0
Giratuity frefer note 25) 152 |6
Stafl wellre expenses 213 29
5311 5,406
17 Depreciation and amoriization expense
Depreciation of propeny, plant and equy {refer note 3) 26 102
Amortization of intngible nsses (refer note 1) - 3
Diepreciation ol rght-of~use assets (refir nole 32) 10 12
316 217
I8 Finance costs
Interest an lense labilities {refer note 32) 128 73
Bank and fnancinl ¢harges 3 8
Interes) - others 4 9
Finance costs expensed in profit or loss 135 [
1% Otler expenses
Rental charges I -
Rattes and 1aaes 2 21
Eleciricity and water chirges 33 23
Telephane and communication charpes 17 25
Liegall and professional fees 401 289
Travelling and conveyanee 0h 17
Recruitinent expenses 199 8
Isuranee # I o
Repmrs and mainteninee
= Tlant el ansichiniery El] 7
- Buildings 2 -
- Othiers Ta T
Allowance for doubiful debits 4 10
Payment to anditors (refer nowe 19(n) below) 30 20
CSR expendilitre (refer note 19b) below) 82 a8
Oiher produciion expenses 1.GHE 78
Miscellmmeons expenses 3 |
2745 1,066
ANl due 1o rounding ofT o nearest lakhs
1914) Detulls of payments fo aulbitns
Statutory audi 27 17
Tax nueh 2 2
Ot ol pochel expensel - 0
Toother capueities:
Curtification fees | |
30 20
NI e 1o rounding ofT o negeest 1aklis
19¢1y) Details of CSI espenditure
i} Gross amonnt required to be spent by Company duning the year §2 58
b) Amount approved by the Board o be spent ducing the year 82 58
<) Amount spent during the vear on:
Conatruction/scyuisition of uny nssel - -
O puirpose other thin Construction’ agquisition of an ssset 82 58
d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
1) Caminbunon 1o Public Trus - -
1) Contribyution ty Climritable Trust 82 58




Calorge SF Private Limited (farmerly known s Whishworks 11’ Consulting Pyt Lui.)
CIN: UTR200T G20100TCO6T2NT

Motes o Bnanciil statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al winounts in Indinn Rupees Lakds, exeepl for share datiy o as otlierwlse staed)

Veur ended March

Year ended March

2023 022
20 Income lux expense
(1) Income tax expense
Currenl tax 1,100 512
Adiustment uf tax relating to earlier periods - (48)
Deferred tas (78) {32)
1022 443
(b} Amuint Fecognised direetly in equity
Dielirred i psset/(Hability) on other comprehionsive incame [56) (151}
Tatal (n)-{b} 1078 453
(e} Reconcilintion of nx exf il the ac Ing profit muliipicd by Indin's fax rate
Yeur enifed March Year ended Mareh
2023 1022
Profit hefore income tax expense (malnding OCH 5,502 4018
Enacted i rates i inlin . 5179 25.07%
Computed expected tax expenie LA0H (WU
Tux effect af amounis which are not deductible (taxable) in caleulnting ble income:
Efleet of non-deductible expenses 13 14
Effect of deduction availed under seetion $0M of Tncotse Tax Act, 1961 {301) {399)
Effect in current tax due 1o difere 1w rate on dividend w/s | 15BED of the lneome Tax Act, 1961 - (127)
Adj s in respect ol current | tiax ol previous yemrs - (48)
Others 9 2
1.078 453

®Re NIL (S March 20220 Ry 127 Lokl portaiig 1o effect of section |1SHBD of Income tax Act 1961, against fhe dividend received from the foreign subsidiney . but in the

current year {he section does ol exist

(This space hus been intentionully Ten Wank)
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Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(ATl amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

21. Earnings per share

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Basic earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 1,691 1,382
From operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
Diluted earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 1.691 1,382

From operations attributable to the equity holders of the company

Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per

share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used 4,346 3,536
in caleulating basic earnings per share:

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used 4.346 3.536
in calculating diluted earnings per share:

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

(i) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the 2,356,959 255,822
denominator in caleulating basic earnings per share

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares and potential
equity shares used as the denominator in calculating diluted 2,56,959 255,822
earnings per share

22. Commitments
Contracts remaining to be execuled on capital account and not provided for amounted are estimated to be
Nil (31 March 2022: Nil).

23.  Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006:

31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small 2 13

enterprises

Interest due on above - -
2 13

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of ) -
section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of - -
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at - -
the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable - -
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

24.

Segment Information

AsperInd AS 108 - Operating Segments, where the financial report contains both the consolidated financial
statements of a parent as well as the parent's separate financial statements, segment information is required
only in the consolidated financial statements, accordingly no segment information is disclosed in these
linancial statements of the Company.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in Indin as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of completed service. The Company
also transfers its employees to its subsidiary Company “Coforge SF Ltd™ in United Kingdom for onsite
work and they become the employee of Subsidiary Company thereafter. The gratuity plan is a funded plan
and the company makes contributions to Life Insurance Corporations of India. The Company does not fully
fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintaining over of period of time based on
estimations of expected gratuity payments,

Balance Sheet amounts — Gratuity

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
the year are as follows:

Present value  Fair value of Net
of obligation plan assels amount

1 April 2021 350 - 350
Current service cost 95 - 95
Interest expense/ (income) 21 - 21
Plan asset written ofT - -
Total amount recognized in statement of profit and 116 - 116
Loss Account
Remeasurements

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 39 - 39

Loss from change in financial assumptions (10) - (10)
Experience loss/(gains) (68) - (68)
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive (39) - 39)
Employer's Contributions - - -
Employer direct benefit payments (76) - (76)
Benefit payments - - -
31 March 2022 351 - 351
Current service cost 127 - 127
Interest expense/ (income) 25 - 25
Plan asset written ofT - - -
Total amount recognized in statement of profit and 152 - 152
Loss Account
Remeasurements

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 7 - 7

Loss fram change in financial assumptions (114) = (114)

Experience loss/(gains) (117 - (117)
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive (224) - (224)
Employer's Contributions 5 - -
Employer direct benefit payments (43) - (43)

Benefit payments - - =

31 March 2023 236 -




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of funded obligations 236 351
Fair value of plan assets £ -
Deficit of funded plan 236 351
Unfunded plans - -
Deficit of gratuity plan 236 351

Principal Assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.36% 7.35%
Salary growth rate 3.80% 10,00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity analysis

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions of the above liability asat 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 is as shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Effect of 100 basis points change in assumed discount
rate on defined benefit obligation

- 100 basis points increase 223 330
(Discount rate (%) increase) -3.26% -5.99%
- 100 basis points decrease 249 375
(Discount rate (%) decrease) 5.81% 6.71%

(b) Effect of 100 basis points change in assumed salary
escalation rate on defined benefit obligation

- 100 basis points increase 251 372
(Salary rate (%) increase) 6.41% 6.06%
- 100 basis points decrease 222 331
(Salary rate (%) decrease) -5.93% -5.74%

(c) Effect of 100 basis points change in assumed
withdrawal rate on defined benefit obligation

- 100 basis points increase 235 347
(Withdrawal rate (%) increase) -0.38% -1.19%
- 100 basis points decrease 236 356
(Withdrawal rate (%) decrease) 0.30% 1.25%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporling period.




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Expected benefil payments for the year ending

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Five Years pay-ouls

Year | 25 35
Year 2 28 37
Year 3 28 40
Year 4 32 42
Year s 35 43
6 to 10 years 120 174
Total 268 371

26. Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category:

31 March 2023

FVTPL FYTOCI  Amortized Cost | rrying Fair
amount | value
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables - - 504 504 504
Other long-term financial assets - - 26 26 26
Total Financial assets - - 530 530 530

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables . - 418 418 418
Lease Liability n = 1,484 1,484 | 1,484
Total Financial liabilities - - 1,902 1,902 | 1,902

31 March 2022
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost Carrying Fair
amount value
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables - - - = -
Other long-term financial assets - - 3] 31 3l
Total Financial assets - - 31 31 31

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - -
Lease Liability - - 1,462 1,462 1,462
Total Financial labilities - - 1,462 1,462 1,462

The carrying amounts of current portion of trade receivables. capital creditors, unbilled revenue, Security
deposits, unpaid dividend account, cash and cash equivalents. Deposits with Bank, Borrowings, Trade and
other payables. unclaimed dividend are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term
nature.

Investments in equity instruments (Unquoted) are carried at cost.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair
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Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

The fair values for security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending
rate.

(i) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are:
(a) recognized and measured at fair value, and
(b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring Level 1 Level Level Total
fair value measurements at 31 March 2023 2 K

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised costs

Trade and other receivables E 504 - 504
Other long-term financial assets - 26 - 26
Total financial assets - 530 - 530

Financial Liability
Financial liabilities ai amortised costs

Trade and other payables - 418 - 418
Lease Liability - 1,484 - 1,484
Total financial Liability - L9002 - 1,902
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring Level 1 Level  Level

fair value measurements at 31 March 2022 2 3 Total

IFinancial assets

Financial assets al amortised costs

Trade and other receivables

Other long-term financial assets - 31 - 3l
Total financial assets = 31 7 31

Financial Liability

Financial liabilities at amoriised costs

Trade and other payables

Lease Liability - 1462 - 1462

Total financial Liability - 1,462 - 1462

Level |: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments
(including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting
period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign
exchange forward contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable
market dataand rely as little as possible on Company-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks 1T Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Level 3: Ifone or more of the significant inputs is not based on abservable market data. the instrument is included
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset
included in level 3.

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of
reporting period. There has been no transfer during the period.

{ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- The use of quoted market prices for similar instruments.

- Derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in
active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.

- The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

27. Financial risk management
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and lease liability. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. Below is the summary of various risk:

(n) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk,

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in markel interest rates. There are no borrowings on the financial statements. Hence,
there is no concentration of interest rate risk.

(if) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Alows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the Statement of Profit and
Loss and Other comprehensive income and equity, where any transaction references more than one currency
or where assets / liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Company.

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are
subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries, The risks primarily relate to
Auctuations in US Dollar and Great Britain Pound against the functional currency of the Company. The
Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange
rate risks. The Company does not enter into trade financial instruments including derivative financial
instruments for hedging its foreign currency risk. The appropriateness of the risk palicy is reviewed
periodically with reference to the approved foreign currency risk management policy followed by the
Company.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the foreign currency
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant:




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks I'T Consulting Pvt, Ltd.)
CIN: UT2200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Impact on Profit after Tax

Trade and other receivables: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
INR/USD

Increase by 1% 8.06 8.20
Decrease by 1% (8.06) (8.20)
INR/GBP

Increase by 1% - 18.30
Decrease by 1% - (18.30)
INR/AED

Increase by 1% 0.04 0.70
Decrease by 1% (0.04) (0.70)
INWEUR

Increase by 1% 0.39 1.60
Decrease by 1% (0.39) (1.60)
INR/AUD

Increase by 1% 0.09 -
Decrease by 1% (0.09) -
INR/SEK

Increase by 1% 0.06 -
Decrease by 1% (0.06) -
INR/SGD

Increase by 1% 0.13 -
Decrease by 1% (0.13) -
Trade payables:

INR/USD

Increase by 1% 0.01 -
Decrease by 1% (0.01) -
INR/GBP

Increase by 1% 0.07 0.08

Decrease by 1% (0.07) (0.08)




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt, Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. exceplt for share data or as otherwise stated)

Cash and bank balances:

INR/USD
Increase by 1% -

Decrease by 1% -

INR/GBP
Increase by 1% -

Decrease by 1% -

* Holding all other variables constant
# Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

(b) Credit risk

()

Trade receivables

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will nol meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables and other receivables),

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting
to Rs. 3,708 Lakhs (31 March 2022: 4,499 Lakhs), other receivables of Rs. NIL (31 March 2022: 147
Lakhs). Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed
through subsidiaries and other corporate customers. The Company earns revenues from its subsidiary where
the payment is received as and when it is due and from other customers for which the Company has used
the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on trade receivables and unbilled
revenue and has provided it wherever appropriate.

Basis this assessment. the allowance for doubtful trade receivables of Rs, 25 Lakhs as at 31 March 2023 (31
March 2022: 21 Lakhs) is considered adequate,

Similar assessment is done in respect of other receivables of Rs. NIL (31 March 2022: 147 Lakhs) as at 3|
March 2023 while arriving at the level of provision that is required.

In respect of security deposit (including prepayment) of Rs. 63 Lakhs as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022;
96 Lakhs). the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk and believes that no provision is required
for its recoverability.

The following table gives the movement in allowance for expected eredit loss for the year ended 31 March
2023:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balance al the beginning 21 I
Expected credil loss recognized 4 10
Balance at the end 25 21

Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is
generated from operations, The Company has no outstanding borrowings from banks. The Company
believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk
is perceived.




Coforge SF Private Limited (formerly known as Whishworks IT Consulting Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN: U72200TG2010PTC067287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Maturities of financial Habilities
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of

31 March 2023:
Less than 1 1-3 3-5 More than 5 Total
Year Years Years Years

31 March 2023
Trade payables 561 418 - - 979
Lease liability 13 55 98 1,331 1497
574 486 98 1,335 2476

31 March 2022
Trade payables 399 - - - 399
Lease liability 46 7 80 1,375 1,508
445 7 80 1,375 1,907

28. Cupital management
Risk management
For the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders. The primary objectives of the Company's capital
managemenl are to maximise the shareholder value and safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern. The Company has no outstanding borrowings. The funding requirements are generally met through
operating cash flows generated.

29. Name of related parties and description of relationship

Nature of relationship Name of the Company

Holding Company Coforge Limited

Subsidiary Companies Coforge SF Limited (erstwhile Whishworks Limited UK)
Fellow Subsidiaries Coforge Inc. (erstwhile NII'T Technalogies Inc. USA

Coforge PTE Limited
Coforge DPA Australia Pty. Limited
Coforge DPA Private Limited

Coforge FZ LLC (erstwhile NIIT Technologies FZ LLC) (w.e.f
01 September 2020)

Coforge UK Ltd

Coforge Technologies Ltd. (Erstwhile NIIT Technologies USA)
Coforge SmartServe Limited

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Sudhir Singh (Director)
Sanjeev Prasad (Director)
Ajay Kalra (Director)
Suman Kumar Konkumalla (Director till 31 March 2023)

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year-end:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Coforge Limited
Disclosed under trade payables 920 71
Disclosed under trade receivables - 271
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Coforge Inc. (Erstwhile NIIT Technologies Inc.)
Disclosed under trade receivables

Coforge UK Ltd
Disclosed under trade receivables

Coforge SF Ltd (Erstwhile Whishworks Limited UK)
Disclosed under trade receivables

Disclosed under investments in equity instruments
Disclosed under trade payable

Disclosed under other financial assets

Coforge Technologies Ltd. (Erstwhile NIIT Technologies,
USA)

Disclosed under trade Payables

Disclosed under trade receivables

Coforge FZ LLC (Erstwhile NIIT Technologies FZ LLC)
Disclosed under trade receivables

Coforge PTE Ltd.
Disclosed under trade receivables

Coforge DPA Australia Pty. Ltd.
Disclosed under trade receivables

(b) Transactions during the year

Coforge SF Ltd UK (Erstwhile Whishworks Limited UK)

585

(81)

177
121
9

541

2,604
121
143
147

88

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 5,848 4518
Recovery for support services - 384
Reimbursement of expenses from (received/receivable) 261 68
Purchase of software subscription and support seryices - 38
Investment during the year - -
Legal and Professional charges 157 118
Dividend received during the year 1,433 1.585
Coforge Limited (Erstwhiie NII'T Technologies Limited)

Revenue from operations - 237
Allotment of Equity Shares - -
Legal and Professional Charges 532 198
Dividend paid during the year 5,624 1,746
Coforge Inc. (Erstwhile NITT Technologies Inc.)

Revenue from operations 2369 165
Legal and Professional charges - 24
Coforge F'Z L1.C (Erstwhile NITT Technologies FZ LLC)

Revenue from operations 18
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Coforge UK Litd
Revenue from operations 1,277 598

Coforge SmartServe Limited
Dividend paid during the year 1,136 352

Coforge PTE Limited
Revenue from Operation 187 -

Coforge DPA Australia Pty Limited
Revenue from Operation 50 -

30. Significant accounting judgements estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they ocour.

(i) Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The cost of the defined gratuity plan and the present value of gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial assumptions that may differ from the actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

(ii) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on written down value method till the date of
acquisition by Coforge Limited (Erstwhile NIIT Technologies Limited). Post-acquisition, the Company
hns adopted straight-line basis of depreciation (in line with the group policy) using the rates arrived al
based on the useful lives and residual values of all its property, plant and equipment estimated by the
management. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of
the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment, though these rates in certain cases
are different from lives prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Refer note for details on taxes.
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(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

3

4)

b)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Impairment of investments
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying

amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Disaggregate revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Vertical 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Banking and financial services 1,764 615
Travel, Transport and Logistics 679 90
Retail 3,403 1,709
Insurance 1,565 97
Others 7.723 6,235
Total revenue from contracts with customers 15,135 8,746
India 3.826 1,844
Outside India 11,309 6,902
Total revenue from contracts with customers 15,135 8,746

Contract balances

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Trade receivables 1,947 4,392
Unbilled revenue (Contract assets) 1.761 107
Deferred revenue (Contract liability ) 95 58
Particulars about Contract assets (Unbilled revenue)

Balance at the beginning 107 30
Unbilled revenue classified to trade receivable upon billing ol 30
to customer out of opening unbilled revenue

Particulars about Contract liabilities (Deferred

revenue)

Balance at the beginning 58 7
Deferred revenue classified to trade receivable upon billing 58 7

to customer out of opening deferred revenue
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¢) Performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price
yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company
expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in indAS1135,
the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts
where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's
performance completed lo date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis,
fixed monthly / fixed capacity basis and transaction basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates
are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of
contracts, periodic revalidations, and adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for
currency.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as of March
31, 2023, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above, is Rs. 641 Lakhs (Previous
Year Nil). Out of this, the Company expects to recognize revenue of Rs. 641 Lakhs (Previous Year Nil)
within the next one year. This includes contracts that can be terminated for convenience without a
substantive penalty since, based on current assessment, the occurrence of the same is expected (o be
remote.

32. Leases:
The Company had entered into a new lease contract for the period of 5 years with extension option for 10
years during financial year 2021-2022, for this lease contract, the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
the extension option.
The Company also elected to use the recognition exemption for lease contract that, at the commencement
date, has a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase aption (“short-term lease™)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assef recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Building Lease
AS at 31 March 2021 768
Addition 1498
Depreciation Expenses (112)
Impact on account of reassessment (656)
As at 01 April 2022 1498
Addition -
Depreciation expense (100)
Impact on account of reassessment -
As at 31 March 2023 1398

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liability (included under other financial liabilities) and the
movements during the yearn

Particulars Building Lease
AS at 31 March 2021 751
Addition 1462
Aceretion of interest 73
Payments (138)
Impact on account of reassessment (640)
As at 01 April 2022 1,508
Addition =
Accretion of interest 128
Payments (139)

Impact on account of reassessment -
As at 31 March 2023 _ 1497
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The fallowing is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulnrs As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Current lease liabilities ] 46
Non-curtent lease labilities 1,484 1,462
Total 1,497 1,508

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on

an undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2023 2022
Less than one vear 139 139
One to five years 821 776
Mare than five years 1,776 1,959
Total 2,736 2,875

The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs. 11 Lakhs (31 March, 2022 Rs. NIL) for the year ended March

31,2023,

The Company had total cash outflows for principal portion of leases of Rs. 11 Lakhs in (31 March, 2022 Rs. 65 Lakhs).

Following are the impact in PL

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Depreciation expense of Right to Use of Assets 100 12
Interest expense ol Lease liabilities 128 73
Expense relating to short term lease and lease of low I -
value assets

Total 239 185

33. Contingent Liabilities

Tax demand of Rs. 963 Lakhs, raised on account of mismatch of tax credit of Rs, 691 Lakhs resulting in
additional interest liability of Rs. 272 Lakhs. The Company has filed both a rectification application and appeal

against the said tax demand.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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34, Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator | 31-Mar- | 31-Mar- | % change | Reason for
23 22 variance
Current Current Assels Current 2.81 7.91 -65% | Growth in
Ratio Liabilities current
liability due
to increase
in  linbility
for  current
tax (net) and
other current
liabilities
Debt Equity | Total Debt Shareholder's 0.36 0.24 53% | Decrease in
Ratio Equity other equity
due to higher
dividend
puyout  in
F.Y 22-23
Debt Earnings for debt | Debt service 17.58 17.32 1%
service service = Net profit | = Interest &
Coverage after taxes -+ Non- | Lease
Ratio cash operating | Payments +
expenses/(Income)t | Principal
Interest Repayments
Return - on | Net  Profits  afier | Average 83% 63% 32% | Decrease in
equity ratio | taxes — Preference | Shareholder’s other equity
Dividend Equity due to higher
dividend pay
out in FY
22-23.
Inventory Cost of goods sold | Average NA NA NA
turnovetr Inventory
ratio
Trade Net credit sales = | Average 3.69 245 50% | Increase in
receivable Gross credit sales - | Trade revenue
turmover sales return Receivable from
ratio contract with
Customers
Trade Net credit purchases | Average 3.86 249 55% | Increase in
payable = Gross credit | Trade other
lurnover purchases - | Payables praduction
rutio purchase return expenses
and legal &
professional
fees during
the year

------
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Net capital | Net sales = Total | Working 4.47 1.43 212% | Increase in
turnover sales - sales return | capital = revenue
ratio Current assets from
— Current contract with
liabilities Customers
and increase
in  current
liabilities
Net  profit | Net Profit Net sales = 29% 40% -29% | %  Increase
ratio Total sales - in net profit
sales return is lower as
compared
% increase
in sales
Return  on | Earnings before | Capital 67% 26% 158% | Increase in
capital interest and laxes Employed = Profit during
employed Tangible Net the year on
Worth + Total account  of
Debt + higher
Deferred Tax revenue and
Liability decrease in
ather equity
due to higher
dividend
payout in the
curent year
Return  on | Interest  (Finance | Investment NA NA
investment | Income)

35. Interests in other entities

The Company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly by the Company and the proportion of
ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Company. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place ol business.

Name Place of Ownership interest Ownership interest Principal
business/ | held by the company held by the Non- Activities
country of controlling interest
incorporat 31 31 31 March 31
ion March March 2023 March
2023 2022 2022
Direct subsidiaries
Coforge SF Limited | United 100 100 - Soflware
i development
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36. Social security code

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the
final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when
it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

37. Subsequent events

No significant subsequent events have been observed till 24 April 2023 which may require any additional
disclosure or an adjustment to the financial statements.

38. Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to current year's classification.
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